

City and County of San Francisco YOUTH COMMISSION

MINUTES

Monday, February 20, 2024 5:00 p.m.

IN-PERSON MEETING City Hall, Room 416 1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place, San Francisco, CA 94102

IN-PERSON MEETING with REMOTE ACCESS via Webex

Members: Ewan Barker Plummer (Chair, Mayoral), Gabbie Listana (Vice Chair, D6), Téa Lonné Amir (Comms & Outreach Officer, Mayoral), Kelly Wu (Comms & Outreach Officer, D3), Allister Adair (Legislative Affairs Officer, D2), Jason Fong (Legislative Affairs Officer, D7), Chloe Wong (D1), Linda Ye (D4), Helen Cisneros (D5), Galicia Stack Lozano (D8), Skylar Dang (D9), Adrianna Faagau-Noa (D10), Imaan Ansari (D11), Valentina Alioto-Pier (Mayoral), Isabella T. Perez (Mayoral), Aryelle Lampkins (Mayoral), Joselyn Marroquin (Mayoral).

Present: Ewan Barker Plummer, Gabbie Listana, Allister Adair, Jason Fong, Linda Ye, Galicia Stack Lozano, Skylar Dang, Adrianna Faagau-Noa, Imaan Ansari, Isabella T. Perez, Joselyn Marroquin.

Absent: Chloe Wong (D1), Kelly Wu (D3), Helen Cisneros (D5), Valentina Alioto-Pier (Mayoral), Aryelle Lampkins (Mayoral), Téa Lonné Amir (Mayoral)

Tardy:

The San Francisco Youth Commission met in-person with remote access on February 20, 2024, with Chair Barker Plummer presiding.

1. Call to Order and Roll Call for Attendance

Chair Barker Plummer called the meeting to order at 05:06 pm.

On the call of the roll:



Roll Call Attendance: 11 present, 6 absent.

Chloe Wong absent Allister Adair present Kelly Wu absent Linda Ye present Helen Cisneros absent Gabbie Listana present Jason Fong present Galicia Stack Lozano present Skylar Dang present Adrianna Faagau-Noa present Imaan Ansari present Valentina Alioto-Pier absent Isabella T. Perez present Aryelle Lampkins absent Joselyn Marroquin present Téa Lonné Amir absent Ewan Barker Plummer absent

A quorum of the Commission was present.

Commissioner Ye, seconded by Commissioner Dang, motioned to excuse Commissioners Wong, Wu, Cisneros, Alioto-Pier, Lampkins, and Lonné Amir. The motion was carried by the following roll call vote:

Voice vote: 11 ayes, 6 absent.

Chloe Wong absent Allister Adair aye Kelly Wu absent Linda Ye aye Helen Cisneros absent Gabbie Listana aye Jason Fong aye Galicia Stack Lozano aye Skylar Dang aye Adrianna Faagau-Noa aye Imaan Ansari aye Valentina Alioto-Pier absent



Isabella T. Perez aye Aryelle Lampkins absent Joselyn Marroquin aye Téa Lonné Amir absent Ewan Barker Plummer aye

Action: Commissioners Wong, Wu, Cisneros, Alioto-Pier, Lampkins, and Lonné Amir's absences are excused.

2. Communications

Alondra Esquivel Garcia, Director of the SFYC, shared communications and meeting announcements with Commissioners.

3. Approval of Agenda (Action Item)

Commissioner Fong, seconded by Commissioner Faagau-Noa, motioned to approve the February 20, 2024 full Youth Commission meeting agenda. No discussion. No public comment. The motion carried by the following roll call vote:

Voice Vote: 11 ayes, 6 absent.

Chloe Wong absent Allister Adair ave Kelly Wu absent Linda Ye ave Helen Cisneros absent Gabbie Listana aye Jason Fong aye Galicia Stack Lozano aye Skylar Dang aye Adrianna Faagau-Noa aye Imaan Ansari aye Valentina Alioto-Pier absent Isabella T. Perez aye Aryelle Lampkins absent Joselyn Marroquin aye Téa Lonné Amir absent Ewan Barker Plummer ave

Action: Agenda Approved.



4. Approval of Minutes (Action Item)

a. February 5, 2024 (Packet Materials)

Commissioner Dang, seconded by Commissioner Perez, motioned to approve the February 5, 2024 full Youth Commission meeting minutes. No discussion. No public comment. The motion carried by the following roll call vote:

Voice Vote: 11 ayes, 6 absent.

Chloe Wong absent Allister Adair aye Kelly Wu absent Linda Ye aye Helen Cisneros absent Gabbie Listana aye Jason Fong aye Galicia Stack Lozano aye Skylar Dang aye Adrianna Faagau-Noa aye Imaan Ansari aye Valentina Alioto-Pier absent Isabella T. Perez aye Aryelle Lampkins absent Joselyn Marroquin aye Téa Lonné Amir absent Ewan Barker Plummer aye

Action: Minutes Approved.

5. Public Comment on matters not on Today's Agenda (2 minutes per comment)

No public comment.

- 6. Presentation (discussion and action item)
 - a. San Francisco Unified School District
 - i. Presenter: SFUSD Executive Director of Business Services, Anna Marie Gordon

Commissioner Ye asks a question regarding the Student Success Fund and outreach about the SFUSD SAC. Vice Chair Listana asks a question about



equitable funding, especially for lower-income schools. Chair Barker Plummer asks a question about whether SFUSD absorbs responsibilities from the County level and a second question regarding chronic absenteeism and its impact on funding. Commissioner Fong asks a question regarding SFUSD's budget from prior years compared to this year and a follow-up question regarding the 2025 goals.

Chair Barker Plummer calls a recess at 5:52 pm and comes back at 5:54 pm.

- b. San Francisco Municipal Transportation Authority
 - i. Presenter: Budget and Capital Finance Senior Manager, Rally Catapang

Commissioner Ansari asks a question about whether the SFMTA funds any safety measures in transit. Commissioner Adair asks a question about transit fare inspectors and the amount of citations they're putting out and a second question regarding the cost of FMFY. Commissioner Fong asks a question about a plan of action to achieve better speed and frequency of buses. Chair Barker Plummer asks for a commitment for FMFY. Commissioner Faagau-Noa asks about the competition with rideshare companies. Commissioner Dang asks about the staff recommendations for the next two years and whether it'll last for more than two years. Commissioner Ye asks about budgeting for emergencies. Chair Barker Plummer asks about a potential tax bond from self-driving cars and rideshare companies.

7. Budget and Policy Priorities (1st Reading)

a. Presenter: Youth Commissioners

The Youth Commission reads a summary of BPP and its recommendations into the record.

Vote16

Chair Barker Plummer talks about Commissioner Alioto-Pier's BPP and the recommendations. Commissioner Ye asked clarifying questions regarding teen responsibilities (including 13-year-olds) and a second question regarding adding information on the ability to encourage representation by having greater voter turnout since the U.S. has a history of under-representing marginalized communities. Chair Barker Plummer wants to look for studies/evidence of technology access points under access to resources.

Voter Registration



Commissioner Marroquin talks about her BPP and the recommendations. Commissioner Dang asks for clarifications regarding American Democracy classes. Commissioner Ye is requesting visuals on stats on youth numbers feeling not prepared to vote and would be easier to ID the need. Commissioner Faagau-Noa is asking if any community organizations do work on providing this information. Chair Barker Plummer recommends looking at the BoE resolution regarding civic engagement and flushing out in-school resources.

Provide Oversight and Needed Investments in School Safety

Chair Barker Plummer talks about his BPP and the recommendations. Commissioner Ye asks about information on locks. Commissioner Perez suggests adding information from the Public Safety joint hearing regarding sending home safety firearm storage information. Commissioner Dang suggests talking about and being more clear about the current SFUSD lock system. Commissioner Fong asks other SFUSD Commissioners about their experience and knowledge about the Say Something Anonymous Reporting policy.

Sexual Harassment and Sexual Assault in Schools

Commissioner Perez talks about her BPP and the recommendations. Commissioner Ye suggests adding better training for both students and teachers on recognizing sexual assault and harassment. Commissioner Fong recommends restarting the Sexual Assault Safer Schools Task Force, which Commissioner Perez comments on the standstill of the legislation. Commissioner Faagau-Noa recommends adding community resources. Chair Barker Plummer emphasizes the need for more resources and asks about the California policy on conducting background checks. Why is there a recommendation on background checks? Commissioner Perez talks about the New Jersey law regarding background checks for teachers.

Chair Barker Plummer calls a recess at 7:05 pm and comes back at 7:16 pm.

Urging San Francisco to Implement Fentanyl Overdose Reduction

Commissioners Ye and Dang talk about the BPP and the recommendations. Commissioner Adair asks about the resources in schools. Chair Barker Plummer emphasizes the Youth Commission's supporting harm reduction resources and hopes in the future to reduce the supply of drugs on the streets as well.

Urging the Mayor and Board of Supervisors to Improve Language Access to Support for San Francisco Residents

Vice Chair Listance talks about the BPP and the recommendations. Commissioner Adair recommends adding more information on Language Line and which departments are using it or not. Chair Barker Plummer asks about the 6000 suggested by OCEIA.



Urging the Mayor and Board of Supervisors to Combat Food and Nutritional Insecurity in San Francisco

Commissioner Listana and Dang talk about the BPP and the recommendations. Commissioner Ye recommends citing community organizations addressing food insecurities.

Reducing Weapon Access to Youth

Commissioner Ye talks about the BPP and the recommendations. Chair Barker Plummer suggests adding the safety concerns and practices stated in the Public Safety BPP.

Urging San Francisco to Take Drastic Action in Addressing the Environmental Effects in Bayview Hunter Point

Commissioner Faagau-Noe talks about the BPP and the recommendations. Chair Barker Plummer suggests merging the Youth Commission's involvement with historical context.

Address San Francisco's Housing Availability and Affordability Crisis

Commissioner Adair talks about the BPP and the recommendations. Commissioner Fong suggests language about subsidizing. Chair Barker Plummer gives appreciation for the BPP, but comments on recommendation number 4.

Vision Zero

Commissioner Fong talks about the BPP and the recommendations. Commissioner Ye asks for clarifications regarding self-driving cars. Chair Barker Plummer suggests stronger language about the failure of Vision Zero and a comprehensive plan.

Commissioner Stack Lozano left the chambers at 8:04 pm and returned at 8:06 pm. Commissioner Ye left the chambers at 8:04 pm and returned at 8:08 pm.

Make Free Muni for All Youth Permanent

Commissioner Ansari talks about the BPP and the recommendations. No discussion.

Improve Quality of Life on Transit

Commissioner Ansari talks about the BPP and the recommendations. Commissioner Ye asks about what's being done to improve safety in transit.

Increasing Resilience of San Francisco

Commissioner Fong talks about the BPP and the recommendations. Commissioner Dang suggests adding "environmental" to the title. Chair Barker Plummer suggests adding a section regarding youth.



Expand Access to Youth Centered Recreation Spaces

Commissioner Ansari talks about the BPP and the recommendations. No discussion.

Homelessness

Commissioner Adair talks about the BPP and the recommendations. Vice Chair Listana suggests adding the recommendations from the LGBTQ+ Task Force resolution on LGBTQ+ youths. Commissioner Faagau-Noa notes that the City has a lot of anti-unhoused mechanisms.

- 8. Committee Reports (discussion item)
 - a. Executive Committee
 - i. Legislative Affairs Officers

No new legislation. The officers are working on the Youth Budget Community Forum.

ii. Communication and Outreach Officers

The officers were absent from this meeting.

iii. General Committee Updates

Instead of Vice Chair Listana, Chair Barker Plummer provides an update.

1. Youth Commission Attendance

Staff provides an update on Commission attendance.

b. Civic Engagement and Education Committee

CEEC Vice Chair Perez provides an update.

c. Housing, Recreation, and Transit Committee

HRT Vice Chair Fong provides an update.

d. Transformative Justice Committee

TJ Vice Chair Dang provides an update.

9. Roll Call and Introductions



Roll call for introduction of resolutions, requests for hearings, letters of inquiry, and Commissioners' reports on their Commission related activities.

- Presenters: Commissioner Lampkins, Commissioner Ansari, Commissioner Wong, Commissioner Cisneros, Commissioner Marroquin, Commissioner Stack Lozano, Commissioner Dang, Commissioner Faagau-Noa, and Commissioner Perez
- b. Other Legislative Introductions

Commissioner Barker Plummer, seconded by Stack Lozano to postpone the item

No discussion. No public Comment.

Voice Vote: 11 ayes, 6 absent.

Chloe Wong absent Allister Adair aye Kelly Wu absent Linda Ye aye Helen Cisneros absent Gabbie Listana ave Jason Fong aye Galicia Stack Lozano aye Skylar Dang aye Adrianna Faagau-Noa aye Imaan Ansari aye Valentina Alioto-Pier absent Isabella T. Perez ave Aryelle Lampkins absent Joselyn Marroquin aye Téa Lonné Amir absent Ewan Barker Plummer aye

Action: Motion was passed.

10. Staff Report (discussion item)

Staff provides updates.

11. Announcements (this includes Community Events)



Specialist Zhan talks about the Youth Budget Community Forum and asks Commissioners to keep passing out the flyers. Commissioner Dang talks about the DCYF Resource Fair happening over the weekend. Commissioner Ye talks about the March to Prevent Fetenayl Overdose event.

12. Adjournment

There being no further business on the agenda, the full Youth Commission adjourned at 8:37 pm.